
      
PLEASE VIEW THE LIVE STREAMED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ON THE CITY'S WEB SITE:PLEASE VIEW THE LIVE STREAMED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ON THE CITY'S WEB SITE:

City-Council-Live-StreamCity-Council-Live-Stream

CORTEZ CITY COUNCILCORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETINGREGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY, MARCH 12, 2024TUESDAY, MARCH 12, 2024
7:30 P.M.7:30 P.M.

      

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,  ROLL CALL,  APPROVAL OF AGENDA.   

 

2. CONSENT AGENDA

The listing under "Consent Agenda" is a group of items to be acted on with a single motion and vote.
This agenda is designed to expedite the handling of limited routine matters by City Council. Either the
public or a Councilmember may request that an item may be removed from the Consent Agenda at that
time, prior to Council's vote. The Mayor will ask if a citizen or Councilmember wishes to have any
specific item removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion.

  

 

a. Approval of the Worksession and Agenda Minutes for February 13, February 27, and Special Meeting
on March 1, 2024.

 

b. Approval of the Expenditure List for March 12, 2024
 

c. Approval of a Special Event Permit for the Cortez Area Chamber of Commerce to host a "Business
After Hours" event on March 21, 2024, from 4:00-7:30 pm, on the premises of the Cortez Area
Chamber of Commerce, located at 20 West Main Street, Cortez.

 

d. Approval of a Change in Corporate Structure for Mi Mexico, Inc., DBA Mi Mexico, located at 801
East Main Street, Cortez.

 

e. Approval of a Transfer of Ownership application for BMCJ, Inc., DBA Stonefish Sushi and More,
located at 16 West Main Street, Cortez.

 

f. Approval of a renewal application for a Retail Marijuana Store License for Durango Organics, LLP,
DBA Durango Organics, located at 1013 East Main Street, Cortez.

 

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There is no limit to the number of speakers, although public comments will be held to anThere is no limit to the number of speakers, although public comments will be held to an
overall time limit of 30 minutes.overall time limit of 30 minutes.
(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)

  

 

4. PRESENTATIONS   

 

a. Council will address public concerns regarding quasi-judicial matters.Council will address public concerns regarding quasi-judicial matters.
 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS   

 

a. Request for Postponement of Public Hearing Date for Elevated Liquors, LLC. Request for Postponement of Public Hearing Date for Elevated Liquors, LLC. 
 

 Staff is recommending a postponement of a Public Hearing Date for Elevated Liquors, LLC. 
 

Presenter: Presenter: Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk

http://www.cityofcortez.com/497 /City-Council-Live-Stream


 6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS   

 

7. NEW BUSINESS   

 

a. City staff recommends that the City Council grant a discount for residents who require aCity staff recommends that the City Council grant a discount for residents who require a
second refuse polycartsecond refuse polycart
 

 Council will consider amending our fee schedule to refelct a 50% discount for second refuse polycart for
users who dispose of excess trash.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Brian K. Peckins, Director of Public Works
 

b. 2024 Police Vehicle Lease2024 Police Vehicle Lease
 

 2024 Police Vehicle Lease includes a five (5) year lease agreement for three (3) 2024 Chevy Tahoe
Police Pursuit Vehicles (PPV) and three (3) Chevy Silverado 1500 PPV pickups, including up-fit costs
for all emergency equipment installation. 

 

Presenter: Presenter: Vern Knuckles, Chief of Police
 

c. Authorization for lease of two greens mowers for the Golf Course.Authorization for lease of two greens mowers for the Golf Course.
 

 Authorization for lease of two greens mowers for the Golf Course.Authorization for lease of two greens mowers for the Golf Course.
 

Presenter: Presenter: Rick Smith, Director of General Services
 

d. South Broadway Area Wide Plan -- Project Working Group Council LiaisonSouth Broadway Area Wide Plan -- Project Working Group Council Liaison
 

 Council liaison nomination and appointment to the South Broadway Area Wide Plan - Project Work
Group Council Liaison.

 

Presenter: Presenter: Rachael Marchbanks, Director of Community and Economic Development
 

8. DRAFT RESOLUTION/ORDINANCES   

 

9. CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT   

 

10. CITY MANAGER'S REPORT   

 

11. CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS   

 

a. Mayor's Report on Workshop   

 

b. Other Board Reports   

 

12. OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS   

 

a. Executive Session as needed.   

 

13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
There is no limit to the number of speakers and no overall time limit.There is no limit to the number of speakers and no overall time limit.
(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to(Speakers have a time limit of three (3) minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)another commenter.  P lease reference rules below .)

  



 
14. ADJOURNMENT   

 



      
 
PURSUANT TO RESOLUTION 11, SERIES 2022, PUBLIC COMMENT:
--Individuals may comment regarding items on the Council agenda or any other topic they wish to address the
City Council about, including items discussed in a previous Council Workshop.    Those wishing to comment
must register by completing an "Intent to Speak" card (located outside of the Council chambers).  Completed
cards will be collected at the start of the meeting and delivered to the Mayor, who will call each speaker to the
podium at the appropriate time.  Comments specific to agenda items scheduled for public hearings should be
reserved and delivered during the public hearing session.
--Courtesy, civility, and respect for others is expected.  All comments should be addressed directly to the Council.
Commenters who are called upon by the Mayor to speak are the only persons allowed to speak during the allotted
time.  Comments, or other distractions from the audience intended for commenters or others are not permitted. 
The Mayor, as the chairperson for the meeting, retains the discretion to deviate from the formats described below.
--There are two general opportunities for citizens to address the Council:
For the first opportunity (which will occur toward the start of the meeting) there is no limit to the number of
speakers, although public comments will be held to an overall time limit of 30 minutes so City business may
proceed.  Speakers have a time limit of 3 minutes per person, may only speak once, and may not cede time to
other commenters.
For the second opportunity (which will occur toward the end of the meeting) there is no limit to the number of
speakers, and no overall time limit.  Speakers have a time limit of 3 minutes per person, may only speak once, and
may not cede time to other commenters.
--Other Opportunities to Participate
Citizens may also participate via email if addressed to councilcomments@cortezco.gov. Comments received by
3:00pm the day of a Council meeting will be delivered to Council the same day and entered into the meeting
minutes.  Citizens may also send letters to the Council by addressing them to "City Council" 123 Roger Smith
Ave., Cortez, CO 81321.  In-person deliveries are also accepted.

MOTION TO GO INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION:
--For a conference with the City attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions
under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b);
--For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing
strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(e);
--To discuss the purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real, personal, or other property interest under
C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a)
--For discussion of a personnel matter under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(f) and not involving: any specific fie
employees who have requested discussion of the matter in open session: any member of this body or any elected
official: the appointment of any person to fill an office of this body or of an elected official: or personnel policies
that do not require the discussion of matters personal to particular employees
--For discussion of a matter required to be kept confidential by the following federal or state law, or regulation:
____ under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(c)
--For discussion of specialized details of security arrangements or investigations under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)
(d)
--For consideration of documents protected by the mandatory nondisclosure provisions of the Open Records Act
under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(g)

AND THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL DETAILS ARE PROVIDED:
(a brief description must be included following the statute citation regarding why the executive session is being
held) 
 

 

mailto:councilcomments@cortezco.gov


CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Linda SmithLinda Smith  

City Clerk 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
lsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

LINDA SMITH, CITY CLERK

Date:Date:
 

March 4, 2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Approval of the Worksession and Agenda Minutes for February 13, February 27, andApproval of the Worksession and Agenda Minutes for February 13, February 27, and
Special Meeting on March 1, 2024.Special Meeting on March 1, 2024.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Workshop Minutes for February 13, 2024
Agenda Minutes for February 13, 2024
Agenda Minutes for February 27, 2024
Special Meeting for March 1, 2024



 

  

 

CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR WORKSHOP/SPECIAL MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024 

6:00 p.m. 

 

 

1.  The Workshop was called to order at 6:00 p.m., at the City Council Chambers. 

Councilmembers present included Mayor Pro-tem Arlina Yazzie, Robert Dobry, Matt Keefauver, 

David Rainey, Dennis Spruell, and Lydia DeHaven.  Mayor Rachel Medina was absent.  Staff 

members present included: Chief of Police Vernon Knuckles, Director of Finance Kelly Koskie, 

Director of Parks and Recreation Creighton Wright, Community and Economic Development 

Director Rachael Marchbanks, Community and Economic Development Specialist Helen West, 

Court Administrator Carla Odell, Grant Administrator Scott Baker, Director of Public Works 

Brian Peckins, IT Technician Aaron Holleman, Deputy City Clerk Donna Murphy, City Clerk 

Linda Smith, City Manager Drew Sanders, and City Attorney Patrick Coleman.  There were six 

people present in the audience.  

 

2.   An update on the happenings in Municipal Court was presented by Municipal Judge Beth 

Padilla.  She stated that there were 104 court sessions held in 2023 and 15 so far in 2024.  She 

thanked Court Administrator Odell for keeping Municipal Court running so smoothly.  The 

success of Outreach Court was reviewed and it was noted that three people have graduated from 

the program since it began in August 2023.  Discussion was held on handling youth in Municipal 

Court as well as how community service is completed if assigned for a sentence.  Municipal 

Judge Padilla spoke about drug and alcohol evaluations and treatment that continues for 

defendants and stated that Municipal Court continues to work with its partners such as Pinon 

Project and Axis Health. 

 

3.   Chief Roy Wilkerson and Battalion Chief Rick Spencer from the Cortez Fire Protection 

District gave an update on the future of the district and the many hurdles of concern.  Staff for 

the district includes one chief, 2 battalion chiefs, 15 career fire fighters, 9 reserve firefighters, 

and 3 volunteer firefighters with three stations.  There were 2,788 runs within the City of Cortez 

in 2023.  The various equipment that is owned by the Cortez Fire Protection District was 

reviewed and it was noted that all the equipment is older than 10 years.  Discussion was held on 

the run volume for the Fire Protection District and Chief Spencer stated that the goal is to arrive 

on scene as soon as possible.  The expenses of the Cortez Fire Protection District were reviewed 

and include personnel, equipment, training, fleet, capital improvement, etc.  Chief Wilkerson 

stated that funding for the district is through a mill levy (currently provides 1.7 million) and there 

is discussion on securing additional revenue streams through sales tax/impact 

fees/grants/charging for services/donations/sales of goods.  Discussion was held on creating a 

training center in the community and adding a wild land crew as well as an EMS team.  It was 

noted that additional funding needs to be found/created for the Fire District to continue to offer 

their current services.    

 

4.  A presentation was made by ZOOM from Willa Williford, CHFA Consultant, on the Final 

Report for 7th Street Housing Project.  Ms. Williford shared the outcome of the CHFA Small 

Scale Technical Assistance which reviewed the 7th Street Housing Project noting that the report 



 

  

 

shows there is a great need for affordable housing in the community; however, the cost of 

creating affordable housing on the 7th Street property owned by the City is much more than 

expected.  Next steps were reviewed which includes seeking funding sources such as working 

with Montezuma County Housing Authority and/or the private sector.  Council commented on 

the financial projection to complete a housing development on a portion of the 7th Street property 

and it was noted that it is not the intention of the City to become developers.  It was noted that 

with opting into Proposition 123 maybe there will be funding for housing in the future.  

 

5.   General Discussion:   None.   

 

The regular workshop was adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 



 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 13, 2024 

 

 

1. The meeting was called to order in the City Council Chambers at 7:30 p.m., with the Pledge of 

Allegiance.  Roll Call was taken and the following Councilmembers were present:  Mayor Pro-tem 

Arlina Yazzie, Lydia DeHaven, Robert Dobry, Matthew Keefauver, David Rainey, and Dennis 

Spruell.  Mayor Rachel Medina was absent.  Staff present included: Chief of Police Vernon 

Knuckles, Director of Parks and Recreation Creighton Wright, Golf Course Superintendent Ryan 

Thetga, Finance Director Kelly Koskie, Community and Economic Development Director Rachael 

Marchbanks, Court Clerk/Administrator Carla Odell, Water Treatment Plant Superintendent Randy 

Hunt, Airport Director Jeremy Patton, Director of General Services Rick Smith, Human Resources 

Director Matt Cashner, Director of Public Works Brian Peckins, Deputy City Clerk Donna Murphy, 

City Clerk Linda Smith, City Manager Drew Sanders, and City Attorney Patrick Coleman.  There 

were twelve people present in the audience.   

 

Councilmember Dobry moved that the agenda for February 13, 2024, be approved.  Councilmember 

DeHaven seconded the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                 Yes                  Yes               absent               Yes              Yes             Yes 

 

2.    The Consent Agenda items to be acted upon by Council were as follows: 

 

a. Approval of the Council Worksession and Agenda Minutes for January 23, 2024. 

 

b.  Approval of the Expenditure List for February 13, 2024. 

 

c. Approval of a Special Event Permit for Cortez Area Chamber of Commerce, along with Onward! 

The Legacy Foundation to host the 7th Annual Putt-Putt Tournament event on Saturday, February 

17, 2024, on the premises located at 20 West Main Street, Cortez. 

 

Councilmember Dobry moved that the  Consent Agenda be approved as presented.  Councilmember 

Rainey seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

 DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

         Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent               Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

3.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – None. 

 

4.    PRESENTATIONS – None. 

 

5.    PUBLIC HEARINGS  

 

a. Resolution No. 04, Series 2024.  Community and Economic Development Director Marchbanks 



CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING            FEBRUARY 13, 2024          PAGE 2 

   

 

 

stated that Resolution No. 04, Series 2024, approves a Conditional Use Permit to allow the 

Homeowners Association (HOA) to lease space inside the HOA’s existing clubhouse, located at 801 

Bluffs Blvd., for a yet undetermined business or professional use.  Leasing a portion of the 

clubhouse would allow the HOA to offset some fixed costs of the structure such as utilities and 

maintenance, thereby keeping HOA dues more affordable for homeowners.  No external changes to 

the existing structure would be required, except perhaps signage, which would be required to meet 

both HOA requirements and City Sign Code.  There are currently 12+ parking spaces provided with 

additional on-street parking when events occur at the clubhouse.  Although, the exact square 

footage that would be leased to a business are unknown at this time, it appears that adequate 

parking already exists on site.  It was noted that business and professional offices are considered 

Conditional Uses in the Residential Manufactured Home (MH) zone.  A conditional use is a use that 

may be permitted subject to conditions imposed upon the approval of the use that are designed to 

reasonably mitigate any adverse impacts upon surrounding neighbors.  The criteria for 

consideration for approval of a conditional use permit and comments from various agencies were 

reviewed.  It was noted that the Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed the application on 

January 16, 2024, and recommended approval.  Staff also recommends approval of Resolution No. 

04, Series 2024 with the following conditions:   

1.  All requirements of utility providers, City Departments, CDOT and affected districts must 

be satisfied, as outlined in adopted City Codes and other regulatory documents.  

Specifically, all improvements shall comply with the minimum requirements of the building 

code.  

2. Operation of any business shall be limited to businesses that meet the definition of a 

“business or professional office” as defined in the Land Use Code in effect at the time. 

3. Prior to initiation of any business, a site plan shall be submitted to the City indicating any 

proposed signage and required parking.  Parking and signage must comply with the Land 

Use and Development Code in effect at the time.  

 

Mayor Pro-tem Yazzie opened the public hearing comment period; however, no one spoke, and the 

public comment portion of the public hearing was closed. 

 

Councilmember Keefauver moved that Council approve Resolution No. 04, Series 2024, a 

resolution approving a Conditional Use Permit for 801 Bluffs Blvd., requested by the Southern 

Bluffs Homeowners Association.  Councilmember Spruell seconded the motion and the vote was as 

follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes              Yes                  Yes                 absent               Yes              Yes             Yes 

 

b.  New Tavern Liquor License for Cortez Conference Center, LLC.  Deputy City Clerk Murphy 

stated that applicants Kurt and Joanne Langmacher, Cortez Conference Center, LLC, DBA 

Destination Grill, located at 2121 East Main Street, have applied for a new Tavern Liquor License.  

Chief of Police Knuckles was sworn in and presented his report noting that public notice was posted 

on the premise on January 3, 2024 and notice was placed in the newspaper on January 31, 2024.  A 

poll of the surrounding neighbors and businesses regarding the issuance of the liquor license 

showed that 38 people were in favor, 0 against, and 5 had no opinion.  The location complies with 

the Colorado Liquor Code Rules and Regulations and the location does not create any known public 



CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING            FEBRUARY 13, 2024          PAGE 3 

   

 

 

safety issues or endanger public health.  Chief Knuckles presented his report to City Council for 

inclusion in the record.   Applicants Kurt and Joanne Langmacher were sworn in and presented their 

petitions to City Council for consideration of approval of the new Tavern Liquor License for 

Destination Grill.  Mr. Langmacher stated that they would like to offer another option for dining in 

the community and to serve the tour buses as well.  He stated that the conference center room will 

be available for the community to use for receptions/meetings/or other uses.  The name of the 

business was kept as the sign that is outside the premises is really nice and it made sense to keep the 

name.  Mayor Pro-tem Yazzie opened the public hearing for comment; however, no one spoke and 

the public comment portion of the public hearing was closed. 

 

Councilmember Dobry thanked the applicants for doing business in Cortez and moved that after 

considering the reasonable requirements of the neighborhood, the desires of the adult inhabitants, 

the necessity of any restrictions on the license, the good moral character of the applicants, and 

compliance with all the provisions of C.R.S. 44-3-3-1(2)(a) and 44-3-312(2)(a), City Council 

approve a new Tavern Liquor License for Cortez Conference Center, LLC., DBA Destination Grill, 

located at 2121 East Main Street.  Councilmember Spruell seconded the motion and the vote was as 

follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes              Yes                  Yes                 absent               Yes              Yes             Yes 

 

6.    UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None. 

 

7.     NEW BUSINESS 

 

a. Highway Users Tax Fund (HUTF) Report for 2023.  Director of Public Works Peckins stated that 

each year the GIS Coordinator completes the City’s Highway Users Tax Fund (HUTF) Report.  This 

mileage certificate ensures that local governments report roadway updates to the Colorado 

Department of Transportation (CDOT) for funding purposes.  The formula for distributions for 

municipalities is based on mileage of roads in the City, as well as the number of vehicles registered 

in the City.  The history of the HUTF was reviewed and it was noted that the report helps CDOT 

keep up-to-date records on all publicly-maintained roadways in Colorado.  Staff recommends that 

Council authorize the Mayor Pro-tem to sign the 2023 Highway Users Tax Fund Report.  

 

Councilmember DeHaven moved that Council authorize the Mayor Pro-tem to sign the 2023 

Highway Users Tax Fund Report.  Councilmember Rainey seconded the motion and the vote was as 

follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes              Yes                  Yes                 absent               Yes              Yes             Yes 

 

b.  Ordinance No. 1325, Series 2024.   Director of Finance Koskie stated that Ordinance No. 1325, 

Series 2024, amends the 2024 Budget and is being presented on first reading.  She stated that the 

ordinance is a housekeeping item regarding three projects that were planned in the 2023 budget; 

however, due to time constraints and supply chain issues, the projects were not completed in 2023.  

They include the pocket park playgrounds, outdoor pool heater, and the purchase of a universal turf 



CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING            FEBRUARY 13, 2024          PAGE 4 

   

 

 

machine.  Also included in the ordinance is an adjustment in the Golf Pro contract as discussion on 

the contract did not occur until after the budget was set.   Ordinance No. 1325, Series 2024, would 

amend the 2024 Budget for a total amount of $362,024.00 to provide for the four items in the Parks 

and Recreation Department budget.  Staff recommends that Council approve Ordinance No. 1325, 

Series 2024, on first reading and set the ordinance for final reading and public hearing on February 

27, 2024.   

 

Councilmember Keefauver moved that Council approve on first reading Ordinance No. 1325, 

Series 2024, an ordinance amending the 2024 Budget for the Parks and Recreation Department 

within the General Fund, in the amount of $362,024.00, and set the ordinance for public hearing on 

February 27, 2024.  Councilmember Dobry seconded the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes               Yes                  Yes                absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

c.  Tax Exempt Lease Purchase of Two Servers to Replace the Current VXRail Server System.  

Director of Finance Koskie reviewed the background on the City’s current server system which was 

purchased in 2017 and noted that it is past it’s expected lifespan.  She spoke of problems that the 

City has had with the current VXRail server system and stated that the City’s IT team had asked to 

replace the system and funding was budgeted in the 2024 Budget.  Review was held of the three 

lease purchase options and it was noted that each lease proposal has an option to purchase the 

equipment at the end of the lease term for $1.00.  There will be an additional $7,000.00 charge for 

technical support during data transfer and transition to the new servers and that charge will be 

invoiced separately and not included in the lease.  Staff is recommending that the Council approve 

the Tax Exempt Lease Purchase offered by Dell Financial Services for two Power Edge R760 

servers for a total lease cost of $236,997.00, and delegate authority to the City Manager to sign 

lease documents and production approval.  Director of Finance Koskie explained the State 

Purchasing Agreement commenting that the State collects bids for all kinds of vendors and once the 

State approves the vendor, the vendor is guaranteed as the lowest price available for a certain 

product or service.  It was noted that the budgeted amount was $52,000.00 for the lease payment.  

Discussion was held on when the equipment would be installed and the amount of time needed for 

the training period.                                                                                                                  

 

Councilmember Keefauver moved that Council approve the Tax Exempt Lease Purchase offered by 

Dell Financial Services for two PowerEdge R760 servers for a total lease cost of $236,997.00, and 

delegate authority to City Manager Sanders to sign lease documents and production approval.  

Councilmember DeHaven seconded the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

d.  Intergovernmental Agreement for Dispatch Services.  Councilmember Dobry commented that he 

is a member of the Montezuma County Hospital District which also has been presented with the 

Intergovernmental Agreement for Dispatch Services for Southwest Health System.  He stated that 

he recused himself from the vote and after consultation with the City Attorney, it was agreed that he 

could vote on the agreement on behalf of the City of Cortez.  Chief of Police Knuckles stated that 



CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING            FEBRUARY 13, 2024          PAGE 5 

   

 

 

the annual Intergovernmental Agreement for Dispatch Services is being presented for Council’s 

approval.  The agreement allows for the City of Cortez to receive dispatch services through the 

Dispatch Center.  City Attorney Coleman stated that he made several changes to the agreement from 

the one completed in 2023 noting that the formatting as well as the terminology needed 

improvement.  He stated that the County Attorney has also reviewed the changes as the City and 

County are the major players in the E911 Authority and it has been determined that the agreement is 

fair and gives the Chief of Police and the Finance Director clear authority to manage the budget and 

the system as the employees of the Dispatch Center are City employees.  He noted that there are 12 

other entities that are provided service through the Dispatch Center besides the City of Cortez and 

Montezuma County and most of the entities have signed the agreement.  He noted that one entity 

required further clarification and no further comment has been received.  City Manager Sanders 

stated that the services are billed at the end of the year and if someone was to leave the Dispatch 

Center, it would leave the City unprotected.  He stated that language in the agreement was changed 

to fix that problem.   

 

Councilmember Spruell moved that Council approve the Intergovernmental Agreement for 

Dispatch Services for the year 2024, and authorize the Mayor Pro-tem to sign the agreement.  

Councilmember Rainey seconded the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

e.  Omnibus Mutual Aid Agreement.  Chief of Police Knuckles stated that the Omnibus Mutual Aid 

Agreement would facilitate and encourage cooperation and assistance in the event of a local 

emergency or disaster by sharing of resources, personnel, and equipment.  It was noted that an 

orderly assistance plan can help mitigate any issues before a sudden and immediate need.   Chief 

Knuckles stated that the agreement will include Montezuma County, Town of Dolores, Town of 

Mancos, and City of Cortez. 

 

Councilmember DeHaven moved that Council approve the Omnibus Mutual Aid Agreement and 

that the Mayor Pro-tem be authorized to sign the agreement.  Councilmember Spruell seconded the 

motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

f.  Equipment Purchase for the Public Works Water Department.  Director of Public Works Peckins 

stated that the Water Department needs to purchase a large excavator to facilitate the removal and 

installation of water mains through the City’s distribution system.  He stated that staff reviewed 

several dealers and auction sites on new and used excavators and found four units within the 

budgeted amount of $250,000.00.  Both new and used excavators come with a one-year warranty.  

Staff recommends that the Volvo EC140E Excavator be purchase from Power Equipment Company 

at the bid amount of $176,000.00.  In answer to a question regarding the life span of an excavator, 

Water Treatment Plant Superintendent Hunt stated that the equipment could last up to 5,000 hours.  

Councilmember Spruell complimented staff for working responsibly for the City of Cortez in 

accepting the lowest bid which is a used excavator with 244 hours on it. 



CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING            FEBRUARY 13, 2024          PAGE 6 

   

 

 

Councilmember DeHaven moved that Council approve the acquisition of a Volvo EC140E 

Excavator from Power Equipment Company for the Public Works Water Department in the amount 

of $176,000.00.  Councilmember Keefauver seconded the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

g.  Airport Parking Lot and Access Road Rehabilitation Bid Selection.  Airport Director Patton 

stated that the Airport Parking Lot and Access Road Rehabilitation project was advertised on 

October 27, 2023 and a pre-bid meeting was held on November 8, 2023, with closing date of 

December 20, 2023 for bids to be received.  Two bids were received which included prices for Base 

Bid – Schedule 1, Base Bid – Schedule 2, and Additive Alternative 1.  The project will be partially 

funded by Federal grants and therefore several additional Federal standards were outlined in the bid 

specifications which must be met in order for a bid to be considered responsive.  Nunn Construction 

was the low bidder; however, there were a few items in the bid that, when tested against the Federal 

requirements, were deemed non-responsive.  The Four Corners Material bid was compliant with the 

Federal requirements, and staff and Garver, LLC, are recommending that the Four Corners 

Materials bid is best suited for construction of the project.  Consideration for value-engineering to 

further reduce costs will be made as the project progresses.  Airport Director Patton stated that the 

ARPA funds were planned for the City’s cost share of the project.  Discussion was held about fees 

being charged for parking and Airport Director Patton stated that a fee schedule for parking will be 

presented to Council at a later date and noted that the fees will help offset some of the cost for the 

expenses of upgrading the parking lot.  He noted that the parking lot cannot be Federal funded as 

any element that would receive revenue cannot be included in the Federal funded portion.     

 

Councilmember Dobry moved that Council award the 2024 Airport Parking Lot and Access Road 

Rehabilitation to Four Corners Materials for a total project bid amount of $2,028,340.68.  

Councilmember Keefauver seconded the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

h. Conquistador Golf Course Golf Professional Services Contract.  Director of Parks and Recreation 

Wright stated that Micah Rudosky (Rudosky Golf LLC) has served as the Golf Pro at Conquistador 

Golf Course for many years, and the most recent contract term was for three years.  Mr. Rudosky is 

an admirable partner, collaborator, manager, and golf professional and has overseen three years of 

exponential growth in golf revenue and rounds leading to three consecutive years of the highest 

revenue and rounds ever recorded.  It was noted that the Scope of Services, Exhibit A, has been 

adjusted to clean up responsibilities and identify the needs for the Golf Professional, maintenance 

team, and City administration to communicate, collaborate, and partner for the success of the golf 

course.  The base rate for the contract was explained and will include an increase over the course of 

the contract which would expire on December 31, 2026.  Director of Parks and Recreation Wright 

explained how the bonus structure was revised and noted that the goal is to set the incentive level to 

maintain the near 100% cost recovery rate.  It was noted that that the success of the City-owned 

Conquistador Golf Course is contingent on three distinct parts:  outreach and marketing, course 

conditions, and customer service and course management.  The City manages the course conditions 



CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING            FEBRUARY 13, 2024          PAGE 7 

   

 

 

and the marketing and outreach are managed through a partnership of the Golf Pro and City staff.  

Management of the pro shop, food and beverage, instruction, and regular and tournament play is 

managed by a contracted Golf Pro.  Staff recommends approval of Conquistador Golf Course Golf 

Professional Services Contract with Rudosky Golf LLC., and it was noted that the increase in the 

base rate was included in Ordinance No. 1325, Series 2024, approved on first reading earlier in the 

meeting.   Councilmember Dobry suggested that an evaluation be completed on an annual basis and 

Director of Parks and Recreation Wright noted that an evaluation is done annually with the Golf 

Advisory Board and it seems to be working well for all parties.     

 

Councilmember Spruell moved that Council approve the Conquistador Golf Course Golf 

Professional Services Contract with Rudosky Golf LLC.  Councilmember Rainey seconded the 

motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

i.   Recreation Center Pool Boiler Bid Award.  Director of Parks and Recreation Wright stated that 

the Recreation Center has two pools in the natatorium.  Each pool has a separate mechanical 

system, including pumps, filters, chemical systems, and boilers.  The equipment is at the age when 

it is beginning to fail and needs to be replaced.  The project scope includes removing and disposing 

of the current boilers and circulation pumps; furnishing and installing new boilers, circulation 

pumps, and four 2” water supply ball valves; and relocating new boilers 20” to the north.  It was 

noted that two bids were received and Sparks Plumbing was the low bidder at a total bid of 

$52,395.32.  The funding for the project was budgeted with $52,000 from the Conservation Trust 

Fund and the minor overage can be absorbed within the fund.  Staff recommends award of the 

Recreation Center Pool Boiler Bid to Sparks Plumbing for $52,395.32. 

 

Councilmember Keefauver moved that Council approve the award of the Recreation Center Pool 

Boiler Bid to Sparks Plumbing for $52,395.32.  Councilmember Spruell seconded the motion and 

the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

j.   DOLA Local Planning Capacity Grant Program.  Community and Economic Development 

Director Marchbanks stated that as determined by the City’s 2023 Housing Needs Assessment, 

Cortez is in dire need of housing.  To address the issues, the City adopted a Housing Action Plan in 

August 2023 and is currently re-writing its Land Use Code to help remove barriers to housing 

development.  Cortez has also opted in to Proposition 123, the Colorado Affordable Housing Fund, 

to allow State support for construction of additional affordable and workforce housing units.  The 

Local Planning Capacity Grant Program, which is offered through the Colorado Department of 

Local Affairs (DOLA), provides grants to eligible local governments which can be used toward 

supporting local governments’ planning capacity to fast track or expedite development review, 

permitting, or zoning of affordable housing and increasing local government planning department 

capacity to help impact the number of units built.  While the City has shown its commitment to 

increasing affordable housing production, its resources are greatly limited.  The grant would help 



CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING            FEBRUARY 13, 2024          PAGE 8 

   

 

 

provide capacity for the City to pursue its goal of facilitating the increased production of affordable 

housing.  With DOLA’s assistance, the City would hire an independent contractor who will help 

bring the Housing Action Plan to fruition, support its Proposition 123 commitment, and maintain 

Proposition 123 eligibility for funding opportunities.  The total grant request is for an amount not to 

exceed $166,400.00 and the City’s 20% grant match would be $33,280.00 (spread out over three 

years).  In answer to a question from Councilmember Spruell, Community and Economic 

Development Director Marchbanks, stated that the person would assess current processes and 

procedures for housing development review and recommend improvements and maintain an 

inventory of potential properties and funding opportunities, develop and implement a method for 

tracking affordable housing, and will act as an affordable housing/Proposition 123 liaison for the 

City.   Councilmember Spruell reiterated that the City of Cortez does not have any intention in 

being in the real estate business.  It was noted that the match funding is budgeted in the 2024 

Budget under contract services.   

 

Councilmember Keefauver moved that Council authorize the City of Cortez Community and 

Economic Development Department to apply for the Colorado Department of Local Affairs 

(DOLA) Local Planning Capacity Grant Program in an amount not to exceed $166,400.00 and 

provide a 20% cash match.  Councilmember DeHaven seconded the motion and the vote was as 

follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

k.  Authorization of the Purchase of Two Utility Vehicles for the Golf Course.  Director of General 

Services Smith stated that on January 25, 2024, the City received five responses to the bid to 

purchase two utility vehicles for the Golf Course.  After review by staff, it is recommended that the 

two units be purchased from the low bidder, Colorado Golf & Turf at a bid amount of $11,112.20 

each, for a total bid of $22,224.40.  The amount is $1,775.60 below the budgeted amount.  It was 

noted that the funding for the purchase is available in the 2024 Equipment Fund Budget and the 

vehicles are available this year. 

 

Councilmember DeHaven moved that Council accept a bid from the low bidder, Colorado Golf and 

Turf, and authorize the purchase of two Club Car utility vehicles for the Golf Course, at the bid 

amount of $11,112.20 each, for a total price of $22,224.40.  Councilmember Keefauver seconded 

the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

l.  Authorization for the Purchase of a Golf Course Aerator.  Director of General Services Smith 

stated that two bids were received on January 17, 2024, for the purchase of an aerator at the golf 

course.  It was noted that the bid from Potestio Brothers for the aerator unit did not meet the 

specifications of the bid as it was much smaller in capacity and size.  The bid for the Toro unit from 

Simpson Norton was $1,388.55 above the budgeted amount; however, the equipment cannot be 

delivered until 2025 and therefore could be adjusted for the bid amount in the 2025 Budget.  

Discussion was held on the difference in the two aerators and Golf Course Superintendent Thetga 



CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING            FEBRUARY 13, 2024          PAGE 9 

   

 

 

explained the coring difference (swath width for the Toro is 31”) and noted that the Toro is much 

easier to use and is the better piece of equipment.  Discussion was held on receiving only one bid 

since the other bid did not meet specifications.  Director of Parks and Recreation Wright noted that 

the difference in completing the aeration of the 18 greens can be done in two days with the Toro 

rather than a week with the John Deere, which is a huge time savings.   

 

Councilmember DeHaven moved that Council accept the Simpson Norton bid and authorize the 

purchase of a Toro aerator for the golf course, for a bid amount of $40,209.55.  Councilmember 

Rainey seconded the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

m.  Appointments to City Advisory Boards.  City Clerk Smith stated that several openings are 

available on City Advisory Boards and three of the positions may be filled by current Planning and 

Zoning members.  Advertisement for openings on the Board of Adjustment and Appeals has been 

ongoing for several months, and there has not been any interest received from the public for the two 

open seats.  Section 6.15 of the Land Use Code states that the board shall consist of five members 

who shall be appointed by City Council and not more than two members may be members of the 

City Planning Commission.  Also, one opening is available on the Cortez Historic Preservation 

Board of which one member is a Planning  and Zoning member.  Planning and Zoning member Jim 

Skvorc’s term has expired and he has submitted a letter asking for re-appointment.  The Planning 

and Zoning Commission and staff recommends that Council appoint Katrina Weiss and Bob Bright 

to the two seats on the Board of Adjustment and Appeals for three-year terms; Emily Waldron to the 

Cortez Historic Preservation Board for a three-year term; and re-appoint Jim Skvorc to the Planning 

and Zoning Commission for a three-year term.  It was noted that the Board of Adjustment and 

Appeals meets as needed and requires four members to be in attendance for a meeting to be held.  

 

Councilmember Keefauver moved that Council appoint Katrina Weiss and Bob Bright to the Board 

of Adjustment and Appeals for three-year terms; Emily Waldron to the Cortez Historic Preservation 

Board for a three-year term; and re-appoint Jim Skvorc to the Planning and Zoning Commission for 

a three-year term.  Councilmember Rainey seconded the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

n.  Letter of Support for the Montezuma Heritage Museum.  City Manager Sanders stated that the 

Montezuma Heritage Museum has requested a Letter of Support for their grant application for the 

T-Mobile Hometown Grant.  The purpose of the grant is for a mural to be painted on their building 

and there is no financial obligation required from the City.  Staff recommends Council approve the 

Letter of Support and authorize the Mayor Pro-tem to sign the letter.  Jeff Brown, Director of the 

Montezuma Heritage Museum, gave an update on the happenings at the museum noting the latest 

additions that have been completed.  He stated the murals would help advertise the museum and 

would be located on the north side in the size of 16’ x 8’ and the south side would be 36’ x 8’ with 

both murals being sealed with archival varnish.  Councilmember Dobry asked about the future 

maintenance and repair of the murals and Mr. Brown stated that they would maintain the murals as 



CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING            FEBRUARY 13, 2024          PAGE 10 

   

 

 

needed through additional grants.   

 

Councilmember Spruell moved that Council authorize the Mayor Pro-tem to sign the Letter of 

Support for the Montezuma Heritage Museum.  Councilmember Dobry seconded the motion and 

the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes              Yes              Yes 

 

  8.   DRAFT RESOLUTION/ORDINANCES – None. 

 

9.  CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT – None.    

 

10.   CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – City Manager Sanders gave the following report:   

 

• A compensation study is being conducted by Graves Consulting for the City of Cortez.  Graves is 

a human resources consulting firm that specializes in the public sector, primarily in Colorado.  

This study will help the City ensure its employees are paid competitively, recruit and retain top 

talent, maintain internal equity and allow career progression and sustainable wage growth.  The 

study should be completed in early May, 2024. 

• The Colorado Department of Transportation, CDOT, has completed the South Broadway speed 

study and will present their findings to City Council at the workshop on March 12, 2024. 

• Clearnetworx continues on their installation of fiber internet in Cortez.  They are currently 

working in the South Point PUD, Brandon’s Gate, Kemnitz Subdivision, Sedona Subdivision, 

and Downey Avenue. 

 

11.   CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 

   

a.    Mayor’s Report on Workshop.  Mayor Pro-tem Yazzie stated that during the worksession an 

update was given by Municipal Judge Beth Padilla on the happenings in Municipal Court.  Chief 

Roy Wilkerson and Battalion Chief Rick Spencer from the Cortez Fire Protection District also 

gave an update on the financial status and possible funding opportunities in the future for the Fire 

District.  Willa Williford, CHFA Consultant, spoke about the final report for the 7th Street Housing 

Assessment.   

 

b.  Parks, Recreation, and Forestry Advisory Board.  Councilmember Keefauver stated that the 

Parks, Recreation, and Forestry Advisory Board meeting was held on February 1, 2024, with a 

presentation on improvement that is happening at Carpenter Natural Area, an update on the pocket 

parks completion timeline, and also an update on the 7th Street project.  Discussion was held on 

geese in the parks and how to deal with them and the hot water issues at the Recreation Center.    

 

c.   Cortez Historic Preservation Board.  Councilmember Dobry stated that discussion at the Cortez 

Historic Preservation Board meeting held on February 7, 2024, included plans for the Historic 

Preservation Day that will be held later this year.  

  

d.   Cortez Public Arts Advisory Board.  Councilmember Rainey stated that the Cortez Public Arts 



CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING            FEBRUARY 13, 2024          PAGE 11 

   

 

 

Advisory Board meeting was held on February 5, 2024, and a lot of things are in the works as well 

as working with some high school students on various projects.     

 

e.  Council Candidate Drawing/Candidate 101 Class.  Mayor Pro-tem Yazzie stated that she 

attended the Council Candidate drawing held on January 29, 2024, for placement of the candidates 

on the Municipal Election ballot.  She thanked Fire Chief Roy Wilkerson for drawing the names.  

She also noted she attended the Candidate 101 Class held on January 31, 2024, and commented that 

the information shared by City Manager Sanders was very useful for the candidates.   

 

12.   OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

 

a.   Executive Session.  Councilmember Dobry moved that Council adjourn into Executive Session 

at 9:12 p.m. for the following purposes: 

 

1.  For the purpose of determining positions relative to matters that may be subject to 

negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and/or instructing negotiators under C.R.S. 

Section 24-6-402(4)(e).  Discussion will be held on the possible acquisition of real estate at 

three different locations in the City of Cortez. 

2. For the purpose of discussing the possible purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of real 

property located in the City of Cortez pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(a). 

3. For a conference with the City Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on 

negotiations and strategies relating to the possible purchase, acquisition, lease, transfer or sale 

of real property located in the City of Cortez pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b). 

 

Councilmember Keefauver seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

      DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

         Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes               Yes              Yes 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 10:45 p.m.  Participants in the Executive Session 

included City Manager Sanders, City Attorney Coleman, Mayor Pro-tem Arlina Yazzie, 

Councilmember DeHaven, Councilmember Dobry, Councilmember Keefauver, Councilmember 

Rainey, and Councilmember Spruell.  Also, for portions of the Executive Session, Community and 

Economic Development Director Rachael Marchbanks, Airport Director Jeremy Patton, Chief of 

Police Vernon Knuckles, and General Services Director Rick Smith were in attendance.  No 

adoption of any policy, position, resolution, rule, regulations, or other formal action occurred 

during Executive Session. 

 

13.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – None. 

 

14.  ADJOURNMENT:  Councilmember Dobry moved that the regular meeting be adjourned at 10:47 

p.m.  Councilmember DeHaven seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

      DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

            Yes                Yes                  Yes               absent              Yes               Yes              Yes 

 



CITY COUNCIL                     REGULAR MEETING            FEBRUARY 13, 2024          PAGE 12 

   

 

 

  ________________________________  

                                                Arlina Yazzie, Mayor Pro-tem 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

            Linda L. Smith, City Clerk         



 

 

CITY COUNCIL 

SPECIAL MEETING 

FRIDAY, MARCH 1, 2024 

 

 

1. The meeting was called to order in the City Council Chambers at 5:00 p.m., with the Pledge of 

Allegiance.  Roll Call was taken and the following Councilmembers were present:  Mayor Rachel 

Medina, Mayor Pro-tem Arlina Yazzie, Lydia DeHaven, Matthew Keefauver, and Dennis Spruell.  

Councilmembers Robert Dobry and David Rainey were absent.  Staff present included:  City Clerk 

Linda Smith, City Manager Drew Sanders, and City Attorney Patrick Coleman.  There were no 

people present in the audience.   

 

Councilmember Keefauver moved that the agenda for March 1, 2024, be approved.  

Councilmember DeHaven seconded the motion and the vote was as follows: 

 

         DeHaven         Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

             Yes              absent                  Yes                Yes             absent              Yes             Yes 

 

2.    ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

 

a.   Executive Session.  Mayor Pro-tem Yazzie moved that Council adjourn into Executive Session 

at 5:02 p.m. for the purpose of conferring with the City Attorney to receive legal advice concerning 

the City Council’s and the Planning and Zoning Commission’s compliance with quasi-judicial 

hearing procedures pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b).  Councilmember Keefauver 

seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

      DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

         Yes              absent                  Yes                 Yes            absent               Yes              Yes 

 

Council returned from Executive Session at 6:21 p.m.  Participants in the Executive Session 

included City Manager Sanders, City Attorney Coleman, Mayor Medina, Mayor Pro-tem Yazzie, 

Councilmember DeHaven, Councilmember Keefauver, and Councilmember Spruell.  

Councilmember Dobry participated via telephone.  No adoption of any policy, position, resolution, 

rule, regulations, or other formal action occurred during Executive Session. 

 

3.  ADJOURNMENT:  Councilmember Spruell moved that the special meeting be adjourned at 6:22 

p.m.  Councilmember DeHaven seconded the motion, and the vote was as follows: 

 

      DeHaven        Dobry           Keefauver        Medina          Rainey        Spruell         Yazzie           

            Yes             absent                  Yes                Yes             absent            Yes              Yes 

 

 

 

  ________________________________  

                                                Rachel B. Medina, Mayor  

 



CITY COUNCIL                     SPECIAL MEETING               MARCH 1, 2024          PAGE 2 

   

 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

            Linda L. Smith, City Clerk         



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Kelly KoskieKelly Koskie 

Director of Finance 
123 Roger Smith Ave 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
kkoskie@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

SARA COFFEY, PAYROLL/SALES TAX ADMINISTRATOR

Date:Date:
 

03/06/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Approval of the Expenditure List for March 12, 2024Approval of the Expenditure List for March 12, 2024
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Expenditure List



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING MARCH 1, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Human Resources AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 55.45$            
CORTEZ COPY & PRINT INCIDENT REPORTS 178.50$          

Total 233.95$          

Municipal Court RICHARD SIMS LAW OFFICE LEGAL SERVICES - MULTIPLE 116.67$          
RICHARD SIMS LAW OFFICE LEGAL SERVICES - MULTIPLE 150.00$          
ABLE TOWING OF CORTEZ TOW FOR CPD 2400350 ANGELA PRICE 250.00$          
STAPLES ADVANTAGE HP206A W2111A Print Cartridge, Cyan 60.06$            
STAPLES ADVANTAGE HP206A W2112A Print Cartridge, Yellow 60.06$            
STAPLES ADVANTAGE HP206A W2113A Print Cartridge, Magenta 60.06$            
STAPLES ADVANTAGE HP206A W2110A Print Cartridge, Black 153.99$          

Total 850.84$          

City Clerk MAINE TOWN AND CITY CLERKS' ASSNWEBINAR 80.00$            
Total 80.00$            

Library SOUTHERN COMPUTER WAREHOUSE Algo 8301 Paging Adapter - Library 337.78$          
Total 337.78$          

City Hall Operations WAGNER ENTERPRISE, L.L.C. JANITORIAL SERVICES 2,300.00$       
XEROX CORPORATION EQUIPMENT RENTAL (116.58)$         
XEROX CORPORATION EQUIPMENT RENTAL 116.94$          

Total 2,300.36$       

Welcome Center ORKIN LLC PEST CONTROL SERVICES 141.99$          
STERICYCLE INC. HAZARDOUS WASTE DISPOSAL 40.20$            
CENTURYLINK PHONES 91.86$            

Total 274.05$          

Police Department DELL MARKETING L.P. PowerEdge R630 Upgrades and Extensions Servic   511.76$          
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 158.71$          
GALL'S LLC 511 taclite glove 35.20$            
GALL'S LLC UFX Knit shirt 112.20$          
GALL'S LLC 511 Stryke pant 288.64$          
ENTENMANN-ROVIN COMPANY Officer badges 260.50$          
GALL'S LLC Shipping 3.48$               
GALL'S LLC Shipping 3.58$               
GALL'S LLC Shipping 12.00$            
GALL'S LLC Shipping 16.00$            
GALL'S LLC Nameplates 95.68$            
GALL'S LLC Trouser belt 162.84$          
ENTENMANN-ROVIN COMPANY Detective badges 260.50$          
WAGNER ENTERPRISE, L.L.C. JANITORIAL SERVICES 1,499.58$       
CENTURYLINK PHONES 63.24$            
FRALEY PROPANE LLC Propane for the evidence shed 226.66$          



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING MARCH 1, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Total 3,710.57$       

Animal Shelter DOLORES ANIMAL HOSPITAL CASTRATION 92.00$            
FOUR CORNERS M.A.S.H., LLC CASTRATIONS 352.00$          
MONTEZUMA VETERINARY CLINIC CASTRATIONS 158.57$          

Total 602.57$          

Public Works DOUGLAS ROTH Blanket PO - GIS Consulting Services 975.00$          
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 55.45$            
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 229.56$          
INTERMOUNTAIN FARMERS ASSOC. CLOTHES 48.58$            
INTERMOUNTAIN FARMERS ASSOC. WORK CLOTHES 90.02$            
VULCAN SIGNS 006601 Wedge for 2-3/8 Round Post" 87.75$            
VULCAN SIGNS 002245 12 Flat Blade Cap for 2-3/8 Round Post - Q  396.00$          
VULCAN SIGNS 002256 12 Flat Blade Cross" 396.00$          
VULCAN SIGNS RD2.375SOCLET 27 Socket for 2-3/8" Round Fenc     799.75$          
ENNIS-FLINT INC 985202-5P WB Yellow Fast Dry 1952F Traffic Pain 1,022.93$       
ENNIS-FLINT INC 985201-5P WB White Fast Dry 1952F Traffic Paint 1,955.70$       
INTERWEST SAFETY SUPPLY LLC 629313-50LB Glass beads M247 - Quote #28508 349.93$          
WINTER EQUIPMENT CO. KT-Xtendor 13 Xtendor Kit, No Holes, 1/2 and 5/8  326.96$          
WINTER EQUIPMENT CO. SYS-RZ12CG Razor System 12ft SHP Med - Quote # 1,555.27$       
WINTER EQUIPMENT CO. SYS-RZ10CG Razor System 10ft SHP Med 4,112.49$       

Total 12,401.39$    

Golf Course Maint AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 53.22$            
SLAVENS TRUE VALUE WEED BARRIER, BLADES 29.82$            

Total 83.04$            

Parks MONTEZUMA VALLEY IRRIGATION CO 2024 Annual Assessment and Fee (177 Shares) 7,667.00$       
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 53.22$            

Total 7,720.22$       

Planning & Building LOGAN SIMPSON DESIGN INC Blanket PO - Professional Services - Cortez Land U        9,185.10$       
LOGAN SIMPSON DESIGN INC Blanket PO - Professional Services - Cortez Land U        13,123.54$    
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 243.80$          

Total 22,552.44$    

Shop SAFETY-KLEEN SYSTEMS INC 30150 MDL 30 Solvent for Parts Washer 291.12$          
CORTEZ COPY & PRINT REFUSE STICKERS 9.90$               
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 901-347 Power Window Switch - Unit 485 38.99$            
STOTZ EQUIPMENT Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenance 269.32$          
WEBB CHEVROLET BUICK OF CORTEZ LKey programing for Unit 409 206.70$          
WEBB CHEVROLET BUICK OF CORTEZ L29540479 Switch - Unit 992 239.01$          
SENERGY PETROLEUM Dyed Diesel w/treatment for Tanks 4 & 5 23,335.98$    
ORKIN LLC Blanket PO - Pest Control Services - Service Cente 195.99$          



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING MARCH 1, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

XEROX CORPORATION Blanket PO - B7035 WorkCenter s/n 5DA859596,  291.26$          
Total 24,878.27$    

Technology AVAYA INC Blanket PO - Avaya Cloud Office Standard 6,009.84$       
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 43.23$            

Total 6,053.07$       

Airport GARVER LLC Terminal Improvements Design Process, ARPA Gr    817.75$          
GARVER LLC Airport Terminal Parking Lot Rehabilitation Design      40,111.20$    
GARVER LLC Apron Expansion Design, AIP Grant Activity - #21A 26,362.90$    
GARVER LLC Apron Expansion Design, AIP Grant Activity - #21A 30,815.00$    

Total 98,106.85$    

Rec Center SPARKS PLUMBING REPAIRS 5,855.89$       
XEROX CORPORATION EQUIPMENT RENTAL 109.35$          

Total 5,965.24$       

Water GREEN ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. Blanket PO - Lab Testing Services 100.00$          
GREEN ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. Blanket PO - Lab Testing Services 124.20$          
LA PLATA COUNTY HEALTH DEPT Blanket PO - Lab Testing for Bac-T's 385.00$          
A & J ELECTRIC INC. Blanket PO - Electrical work at WTP 1,045.09$       
MONTEZUMA WATER COMPANY WATER 292.76$          
CENTURYLINK PHONES 63.24$            
HARCROS CHEMICALS INC. Blanket PO - Phosphoric Acid 75%, drums 3,312.00$       
HARCROS CHEMICALS INC. Blanket PO - Citric Acid, 50# bags 7,520.00$       
PVS DX INC Blanket PO - Sodium Hypochlorite 10% Bulk 12,828.97$    
THATCHER CHEMICAL CO. Blanket PO - Liquid Alum AL2 7,272.27$       
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Rivtun Wall Mounted Rack w/strorage bins 35.98$            
USA BLUEBOOK Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies - Repair/Maintenance 1,239.21$       
BROWNS HILL ENGINEERING & CONTRBlanket PO - Technical Consulting/Service Work 633.70$          
INTERMOUNTAIN CONTROLS NICHOLSNGAM Custom Mounting Kit for Bray 70-0501 Act 316.43$          
INTERMOUNTAIN CONTROLS NICHOLS630250-21410536 S63 Solenoid Valve, N4, 120VA    726.48$          
INTERMOUNTAIN CONTROLS NICHOLS700501-113G0536/K Bray Series 70-0501 Modula    1,664.95$       
AT&T MOBILITY PHONES 106.84$          
INTERMOUNTAIN FARMERS ASSOC. CLOTHES 48.58$            
INTERMOUNTAIN FARMERS ASSOC. WORK CLOTHES 296.04$          
CORE AND MAIN Ford RML-11-T Top Lid for Monitor Cover, 20 Extr  1,269.40$       
MOUNTAINLAND SUPPLY COMPANY Ford C84-43-NL 1x3/4 Coupling - Original PO #230 276.64$          
MOUNTAINLAND SUPPLY COMPANY Ford B44-777-NL 2 Curb Stop CTS PJ x CTS PJ" 1,885.69$       
CRESCENT PIPE TONGS INC Model HC Aluminum Pipe Tongs for 8 C900" 1,250.00$       
CRESCENT PIPE TONGS INC Model HB Aluminum Pipe Tongs for 6 C900" 1,299.00$       
NATIONAL TRENCH SAFETY INC Eyebolt (Fixed 8,000 Lb.) 180.00$          
NATIONAL TRENCH SAFETY INC 6x10x1 Steel Trench Plate SR - Quote #00021994 6,888.00$       
POWER EQUIPMENT COMPANY 2022 Volvo Model EC140E w/244 hours - specs pe   176,000.00$  

Total 227,060.47$  



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING MARCH 1, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Refuse BIG R/JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL CLOTHES 139.97$          
FOUR CORNERS WELDING & GAS SUPPSAFETY PPE 101.35$          
BELT SALVAGE Blanket PO - Miscellaneous Materials for Repairs 146.00$          
REHRIG PACIFIC COMPANY 95 Gallon EG Poly Cart, Grey/Black, Hotstamp - Q   22,275.00$    

Total 22,662.32$    

Total 435,873.43$  



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING MARCH 8, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Human Resources GRAVES CONSULTING, LLC COMPENSATION STUDY 6,688.00$       
Total 6,688.00$       

Municipal Court MARSHALL SUMRALL LEGAL SERVICES - MULTIPLE 800.00$          
PADILLA LAW P.C. MUNICIPAL COURT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3,000.00$       
MICHAEL WANGER Fill-in Judge Services - February 2023 850.00$          
BUFFINGTON LAW, LLC LEGAL SERVICES - ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 1,547.00$       
DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING ASSOC EMPLOYEE DRUG TESTING 45.00$            
NCSI APPLICANT PROFILES 18.50$            

Total 6,260.50$       

Finance POSTAL PROS, INC. INVOICES 521.14$          
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 20.77$            
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 902.08$          

Total 1,443.99$       

City Clerk BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 18.09$            
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 15.21$            
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 168.00$          
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 210.00$          

Total 411.30$          

Library CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 3,503.40$       
CORTEZ SANITATION DISTRICT SEWER 48.00$            
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 165.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ WATER 39.50$            
NCSI APPLICANT PROFILE 18.50$            
OFFICE DEPOT 196517 Boise X9 Multiuse Copy Paper, 8.5x11, 1    475.08$          
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 99.50$            

Total 4,348.98$       

City Hall Operations CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 247.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ WATER 94.35$            
OFFICE DEPOT 196517 Boise X9 Multiuse Copy Paper, 8.5x11, 1    633.44$          
XEROX CORPORATION EQUIPMENT RENTAL 145.04$          

Total 1,119.83$       

Welcome Center CORTEZ SANITATION DISTRICT SEWER 48.00$            
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 115.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ WATER 31.80$            
IMAGENET CONSULTING LLC EQUIPMENT RENTAL 71.16$            

Total 265.96$          

Police Department DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING ASSOC EMPLOYEE DRUG TESTING 45.00$            
AXIS HEALTH SYSTEM Blanket PO  - Jail contract 350.00$          



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING MARCH 8, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 5.50$               
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 11.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 16.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 16.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 22.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 27.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 27.50$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 33.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 33.00$            
CRYSTAL BRITE LAUNDRY Blanket po for uniform cleaning 38.50$            
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Xerox B230 Printer, DNI, Monochrome 159.99$          
N EAR INC Discount (99.99)$           
N EAR INC Shipping 15.00$            
N EAR INC N-ear 360 Flexo Dynamic Single Ear Earpiece 999.90$          
TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE PERSON SEARCH 75.00$            
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Lizzrott Ergonomic Keyboard w/Rollerball Mous 50.99$            
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 29.14$            
ORKIN LLC Blanket PO for bug control 204.99$          
MANE SHIPPING LLC SHIPPING EXPENSE 13.88$            
PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERVEQUIPMENT RENTAL 186.33$          
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER POSTAGE 45.46$            
CORTEZ SANITATION DISTRICT SEWER 64.00$            
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 253.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ WATER 62.60$            
IMAGENET CONSULTING LLC EQUIPMENT RENTAL 42.06$            
GARRHS, INC. Repair HVAC system 1,886.12$       

Total 4,735.47$       

Animal Shelter CORTEZ SANITATION DISTRICT SEWER 76.00$            
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 61.00$            
CITY OF CORTEZ WATER 70.30$            

Total 207.30$          

Public Works DRUG & ALCOHOL TESTING ASSOC EMPLOYEE DRUG TESTING 80.00$            
MANUEL NEVES REIMB CLOTHING - BIG R 305.12$          

Total 385.12$          



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING MARCH 8, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Outdoor Pool CORTEZ SANITATION DISTRICT SEWER 48.00$            
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 345.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ WATER 8.68$               

Total 401.68$          

Golf Pro CORTEZ SANITATION DISTRICT SEWER 140.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 247.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ WATER 31.80$            

Total 418.80$          

Golf Course Maint CORTEZ SANITATION DISTRICT SEWER 48.00$            
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 247.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ WATER 31.80$            

Total 326.80$          

Parks LE PEW PORTA-JOHNS INC. MONTHLY RENTALS 864.00$          
CORTEZ SANITATION DISTRICT SEWER 336.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 1,058.00$       
CITY OF CORTEZ WATER 414.11$          
MONTEZUMA COUNTY WATER DIST. IRRIGATION M592 444.40$          
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 21.54$            
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 21.54$            

Total 3,159.59$       

Recreation BRAND CENTRAL STAFF SHIRTS 24.00$            
BRAND CENTRAL STAFF SHIRTS 497.50$          

Total 521.50$          

Planning & Building BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 69.93$            
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 75.60$            

Total 145.53$          

Shop BELT SALVAGE FLAT STEEL 16.55$            
4 RIVERS EQUIPMENT LLC AT195669 Street Pad for JD 310SJ - Unit 1002 171.58$          
CORTEZ COPY & PRINT DECALS 16.50$            
KEESEE MOTORS 3U2Z14S411XVB Wire Assembly - Unit 485 59.06$            
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs and Supplies (223.00)$         
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs and Supplies 11.89$            
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs and Supplies 125.00$          
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs and Supplies 125.00$          
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs and Supplies 223.00$          
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS Blanket PO - Parts for Fleet Repairs and Supplies 235.86$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan (37.04)$           
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan (33.14)$           
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan (22.00)$           



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING MARCH 8, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 3.07$               
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 3.74$               
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 5.35$               
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 7.90$               
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 16.55$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 16.55$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 20.98$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 24.66$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 27.56$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 27.65$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 33.14$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 35.12$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 36.78$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 37.04$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 37.69$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 43.54$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 66.18$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 70.54$            
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 105.28$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 116.98$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 138.06$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 162.69$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 206.99$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 211.32$          
SUPERIOR AUTO Blanket PO - Parts/Supplies for Fleet Maintenan 290.50$          
SUPERIOR SERVICES, LLC Blanket PO - Janitorial Services at the Service Ce 1,950.00$       
PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SERVBlanket PO - Postage meter MP81 s/n 0207497,    200.37$          
CORTEZ SANITATION DISTRICT SEWER 116.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 379.50$          
CITY OF CORTEZ WATER 314.50$          
FASTENAL COMPANY Blanket PO - Batteries, 1st Aid Supplies 41.39$            
OFFICE DEPOT 196517 Boixe X9 Multiuse Copy Paper, 8.5x11, 1    475.08$          
XEROX CORPORATION Blanket PO - C8045 AltaLink Color Copier, s/n 8T   408.30$          

Total 6,300.26$       

Technology DELL MARKETING L.P. WD22TB4 Thunderbolt Docking Station - Kyle 258.74$          
SOUTHERN COMPUTER WAREHOUSE APC RBC48 Replacement Battery Pack 116.94$          
SOUTHERN COMPUTER WAREHOUSE HP MFP 4301fdw Multifunction Printer - Golf Co 546.48$          

Total 922.16$          

Streets SGM INC. Professional Services - On-Call Engineering - Mis    412.00$          
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 50.04$            

Total 462.04$          

Self Insured Health TRIAD EAP EAP SERVICES 3/1/24-5/31/24 1,488.00$       



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING MARCH 8, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

Total 1,488.00$       

Airport VIKING GATE SYSTEMS LLC Replacement Slide Gate Operator System- Main  7,576.93$       
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 45.75$            
MONTEZUMA COUNTY WATER DIST. WATER M064 50.00$            
MONTEZUMA COUNTY WATER DIST. WATER M068 58.20$            
FALLLINE CORPORATION Production Labor - Hole Fabrication 156.00$          
FALLLINE CORPORATION LRL Freight Charge 781.12$          
FALLLINE CORPORATION 5105-200-522 Snow Plow Blade, Yellow, 132x12      3,801.60$       

Total 12,469.60$    

Dispatch LANGUAGE LINE SERVICE INTERPRETATION SERVICES 42.67$            
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 902.08$          

Total 944.75$          

Rec Center NCSI APPLICANT PROFILES 37.00$            
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 902.08$          
CORTEZ SANITATION DISTRICT SEWER 616.00$          
ATMOS ENERGY GAS SERVICE 1,547.68$       
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 247.00$          
CITY OF CORTEZ WATER 266.91$          
WESTERN PAPER DISTRIBUTORS CLEANING SUPPLIES 132.25$          

Total 3,748.92$       

Water POSTAL PROS, INC. POSTAGE 734.24$          
CITY OF CORTEZ FIBER 902.08$          
CITY OF CORTEZ REFUSE 61.00$            
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Grandstream UCM6301 Unit 220.90$          
USA BLUEBOOK 30024 Bromcresol Green-Methyl Indicator Wipe 28.45$            
USA BLUEBOOK 21119 Phenolphthalein Indicator Powder 29.15$            
USA BLUEBOOK 77498 Swiftest DPD Free CL2 Reagent 65.69$            
USA BLUEBOOK 34133 Kimtech Kimwipes - Case - 15/boxes 237.31$          
NCSI APPLICANT PROFILES 18.50$            
UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER Blanket PO - Utility Notification Charges 157.38$          
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 149.50$          
BALLANTINE COMMUNICATIONS NEWSPAPER ADS/NOTICES 149.50$          
FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1116 8 inch C900 DR14 PVC GJ Blue Pipe 10,378.80$    
MUELLER CONSTRUCTION SERVICES INC 2024 Clarifier Drive Replacement Project - origin   29,196.35$    
WESTECH Expedited Schedule for Startup 1,085.00$       
WESTECH Clarifier Startup Service - Proposal 146424 6,400.00$       
SGM INC. Blanket PO - WTP Infrastructure Consulting - Tre     1,717.75$       
RICHARD LANDRETH Blanket PO - Consulting - 2024 Turf Replacemen  800.00$          

Total 52,331.60$    

CCN Fund UTILITY NOTIFICATION CENTER Blanket PO - Utility Notification Charges 77.40$            



EXPENDITURE LIST FOR WEEK ENDING MARCH 8, 2024

Department Vendor Name Description Amount

MAMMOTH NETWORKS Blanket PO - D1A, CRTZ2018-001R 2Gbps comm 1,695.00$       
VISIONARY COMMUNICATIONS, INC. Blanket PO - Tower rental, Business wireless int    1,980.32$       

Total 3,752.72$       

Refuse POSTAL PROS, INC. POSTAGE 734.24$          
Total 734.24$          

Total 113,994.64$  



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Linda SmithLinda Smith  

City Clerk 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
lsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

DONNA MURPHY, DEPUTY CITY CLERK

Date:Date:
 

03/05/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Approval of a Special Event Permit for the Cortez Area Chamber of Commerce to host aApproval of a Special Event Permit for the Cortez Area Chamber of Commerce to host a
"Business After Hours" event on March 21, 2024, from 4:00-7:30 pm, on the premises"Business After Hours" event on March 21, 2024, from 4:00-7:30 pm, on the premises
of the Cortez Area Chamber of Commerce, located at 20 West Main Street, Cortez.of the Cortez Area Chamber of Commerce, located at 20 West Main Street, Cortez.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
SEP- Chamber of Commerce



 

 

 

                                                                            

3/5/2024 
 

 
MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM:        Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk 

 

SUBJECT:  APPLICATION FOR A SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT FOR THE CORTEZ AREA 

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE  

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The application referred to above was filed with the City Clerk’s office on February 21, 2024.  The 

application appears to be complete, the fees have been paid, and the public notice sign has been posted 

on the premises.  The Special Event Permit would allow The Cortez Area Chamber of Commerce to 

host a “Business After Hours” event, on March 21, 2024 from 4:00-7:30pm, on the premises of the 

Cortez Area Chamber of Commerce, located at 20 West Main Street, Cortez. 

 

ISSUES 

 

Non-profit organizations are allowed fifteen Special Event Permits per year.  This application is the 

third event for 2024. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends approval of a Special Event Permit to allow The Cortez Area Chamber of 

Commerce host a “Business After Hours” event, on March 21, 2024 from 4:00-7:30 pm, on the 

premises of the Cortez Area Chamber of Commerce, located at 20 West Main Street, Cortez. 

 

 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Linda SmithLinda Smith  

City Clerk 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
lsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

DONNA MURPHY, DEPUTY CITY CLERK

Date:Date:
 

02/22/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Approval of a Change in Corporate Structure for Mi Mexico, Inc., DBA Mi Mexico,Approval of a Change in Corporate Structure for Mi Mexico, Inc., DBA Mi Mexico,
located at 801 East Main Street, Cortez.located at 801 East Main Street, Cortez.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Change in Corporation Structure- Mi Mexico



 
 

 

 

                                                                            

February 24, 2024 

 

 

 
MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM:        Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk 

 

SUBJECT:  CHANGE IN CORPORATION STRUCTURE MI MEXICO INC., DBA MI 

MEXICO, LOCATED AT 801 EAST MAIN STREET, CORTEZ 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The Change in Corporation form was filed in the City Clerk’s office on February 12, 2024.  Hosana 

Espinoza is a co-owner within the company.  Fingerprints for Ms. Espinoza were sent to CBI and an 

individual history record have been completed.  The application appears to be complete and all fees 

were paid.   

 

 

ISSUES 

 

No Issues. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends approval of a Change in Corporation Structure for Mi Mexico Inc., DBA Mi 

Mexico., located at 801 East Main Street, Cortez. 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Linda SmithLinda Smith  

City Clerk 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
lsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

DONNA MURPHY, DEPUTY CITY CLERK

Date:Date:
 

02/26/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Approval of a Transfer of Ownership application for BMCJ, Inc., DBA Stonefish SushiApproval of a Transfer of Ownership application for BMCJ, Inc., DBA Stonefish Sushi
and More, located at 16 West Main Street, Cortez.and More, located at 16 West Main Street, Cortez.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Transfer of Ownership- Stonefish



 

 

 

                                                                            

                            February 26, 2024 

 

MEMO TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM:        Donna Murphy, Deputy City Clerk 

 

SUBJECT:  APPLICATION FOR A TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP FOR BMCJ, INC, DBA 

STONEFISH SUSHI AND MORE, LOCATED AT 16 WEST MAIN STREET, 

CORTEZ 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

The application for a Transfer of Ownership for a Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License was recently 

completed for BMCJ, Inc, DBA Stonefish Sushi and More.  The application is being transferred from 

BMCJ, Inc. (Brandon Shubert) to Stonefish Sushi Management, LLC. (Monty Guiles).  Transfer of 

Ownership application is available for view in the City Clerk’s Office.     

 

 

ISSUES 

 

When a request is made for a Transfer of Ownership, licensing authorities are to consider only the 

requirements of C.R.S. 2022, 44-3-303, which refers to the character of the licensee.  Individual 

History records were completed Monty Guiles.   

 

As per Section 44-3-311(1) the local licensing authorities may cause a hearing to be held on the 

application for Transfer of Ownership; however, the local licensing authority may approve the 

Transfer of Ownership without a hearing. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends approval of the Transfer of Ownership of a Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License 

from BMCJ, Inc. (Brandon Shubert) to Stonefish Sushi Management, LLC. (Monty Guiles), located 

at 16 West Main Street without a public hearing. 

 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Linda SmithLinda Smith  

City Clerk 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
lsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

LINDA SMITH, CITY CLERK

Date:Date:
 

February 28, 2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Approval of a renewal application for a Retail Marijuana Store License for DurangoApproval of a renewal application for a Retail Marijuana Store License for Durango
Organics, LLP, DBA Durango Organics, located at 1013 East Main Street, Cortez.Organics, LLP, DBA Durango Organics, located at 1013 East Main Street, Cortez.
 

AttachmentsAttachments
Renewal Memo for Durango Organics





CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Linda SmithLinda Smith  

City Clerk 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
lsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

LINDA SMITH, CITY CLERK

Date:Date:
 

March 5, 2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Council will address public concerns regarding quasi-judicial matters.Council will address public concerns regarding quasi-judicial matters.
 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Linda SmithLinda Smith  

City Clerk 
123 Roger Smith Avenue 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
lsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

DONNA MURPHY, DEPUTY CITY CLERK

Date:Date:
 

03/04/2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Request for Postponement of Public Hearing Date for Elevated Liquors, LLC. Request for Postponement of Public Hearing Date for Elevated Liquors, LLC. 
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
A public hearing date of Tuesday, March 12, 2024, was set by City Council at the February 27, 2024 Council
meeting for review of an application for a new Retail Liquor Store License for Elevated Liquors, LLC., to be
located at 530 North Broadway, Cortez.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
Due to the required public notice period in the newspaper and the last Council meeting (February 27, 2024)
coinciding within a few days of each other, staff is requesting that the public hearing date for the new Retail
Liquor Store License for Elevated Liquors, LLC., be postponed to the next City Council meeting, which is
scheduled for Tuesday March, 26, 2024.  

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
None

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council postpone the public hearing for a new Retail Liquor Store License for Elevated
Liquor, LLC., to be located at 530 North Broadway, Cortez, to Tuesday, March 26, 2024.

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be:

I move that City Council approve the postponement of the public hearing for a new Retail Liquor Store License
for Elevated Liquor, LLC., to Tuesday, March 26, 2024.



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Brian PeckinsBrian Peckins 

Director of Public Works 
110 West Progress Circle 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
bpeckins@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

BRIAN PECKINS, DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS

Date:Date:
 

March 4, 2024
 

RE:RE:
 

City staff recommends that the City Council grant a discount for residents who require aCity staff recommends that the City Council grant a discount for residents who require a
second refuse polycartsecond refuse polycart
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
The Public Works Refuse Division would like to request that a discount be granted to residents who request a
second refuse polycart.  This is designed to encourage proper disposal of household waste.  Our goal is to
standardize trash receptacles in order to streamline the side-load pickup routes and increase paid receptacle use
rates for sanition and safety benefits.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
With the implementation of the new side-load trash truck, this streamlined service minimizes the amount of times
a driver must exit the truck.  However, many residents are still putting out trash in non-City-recognized
receptacles, which is a cause for concern. 

The 2024 fee for a polycart is $29.15.  To encourage proper disposal, a second polycart discount line item of
$14.58, or a 50% discound, would be added to our fee schedule. This discount will foster goodwill among
residents and give them some relief and, hopefully, residents will be more inclined to take advantage of this
opportunity.  It would be beneficial to both residents and staff.

This proposed discount is in line with our industry best practices. To further support our goals, we feel
implementing a marketing strategy that provides a 50% discount on the order of a second polycart will boost
sales.  This will help us recover our initial budget impact more quickly. 
 

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
Currently, 153 residents have a second polycart.  The initial 2024 budget impact would be approximately
$20,076.
 

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that Council approve the amendment to our fee schedule to include a discounted rate of
$14.58, or a 50% discount, for a second refuse polycart.

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be: 
I move that City Council amend the 2024 City fee schedule to reflect that a second refuse polycart for residential
customers will cost $14.58, effective April 1, 2024.



AttachmentsAttachments
2nd Polycart Half Off Flyer



City of Cortez 
Service Center 

110 West Progress Circle 

Cortez, CO  81321 

 

Second Polycart:   50% Off! 

 

 

We've got some great news to share with you!  The City of Cortez is thrilled to 

announce a new Polycart Discount Policy, which will go into effect on April 1, 2024.  

Our goal is to make waste disposal easier and more affordable for you. 

We understand that sometimes a single trash container isn't enough to contain all 

your trash.  That's why our new policy allows you to request a second polycart at a 

50% discount from the original rate.  We hope this will make managing your waste 

a breeze for you! 

If you already have a second polycart, you're in luck!  Our improved efficiency with 

our sideload system ensures that you too can take advantage of the savings. You 

don't have to do anything - the discounted rate will be applied automatically, and 

you will be charged according to the new rate. 

To request a second polycart, call David Schaak at City Hall - 970.564.3012. 

Thank you for doing your part in keeping our City clean and beautiful! 

 

j:\pwadmin\refuse & recycling\new service flyers\second polycart discount flyer.docx 



CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Vern KnucklesVern Knuckles 

Chief of Police 
608 N. Park Street 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
vknuckles@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

Lori Millich, Administrative Secretary/Police

Date:Date:
 

03-06-2024
 

RE:RE:
 

2024 Police Vehicle Lease2024 Police Vehicle Lease
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
The Police Department is requesting that the City lease six (6) new police vehicles. Three (3) 2024 Chevy Tahoes
for Investigations and three (3) Chevy 1500 pickups for Patrol. All six (6) vehicles are Police Pursuit Vehicles
(PPV) rated.
At the end of the lease, the City of Cortez can sell the vehicle back to the leasing company, retain the vehicle for
other City use, or sell the vehicle to another entity. There are no mileage or use restrictions.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
In 2020 and 2021, the police department did not receive replacement vehicles for either of those years due to
budget cuts. Not receiving replacement vehicles put the police department's already aging fleet behind in its
vehicle rotation.
In 2022, the City moved two 2019 Dodge 1500 Special Service Vehicles (SSV) into the police department patrol
fleet. One vehicle came from Public Works and the other from the police department Administration Division.
The City then purchased two non-police-rated vehicles locally to replace the Public Works and Police
Administration vehicles, helping prevent further replacement issues.
In 2022, the Cortez City Council approved a four-year lease for six (6) 2023 Chevy Tahoe PPVs, effectively
starting the lease program. The police department is now requesting the Cortez City Council approve the lease of
six (6) additional vehicles for year two of the program.
Currently, 44 percent of the Police Department's vehicles are at or above 75,000 miles, 15 percent are between
50,000 and 75,000 miles, and 41 percent are below 50,000 miles.
The goal of leasing vehicles for the police department was to establish a vehicle lease program. The lease program
would allow the City to lease six (6) new police vehicles for a term of five years. This five-year lease would allow
the police department to rotate its entire fleet in five years. At the end of the five-year lease period, the City of
Cortez has the option to purchase the leased vehicles for $1.00 or sell them back to the leasing company at fair
market value. The option to purchase these vehicles for a dollar would allow the City to purchase the vehicles and
re-purpose them in other areas of the City. Currently, police department vehicles that are five to six years old have
between 25,000 and 40,000 miles on them. It is estimated that vehicles repurposed within the City would have
significant usable life left in them for the other departments.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
Using Kansas State Bank for the lease and MHQ of New Mexico for the up-fit, the total cost is $409,100.00
(vehicle lease cost and up-fit).
Annual payments over five years are $92,256.34 (Kansas State Bank)
See 2nd page of the attachment for a breakdown.

This expense was approved in the FY2024 budget in the Police Admin Capital Projects Expense Line.



RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the City Council authorize City Manager Sanders to negotiate and sign a five (5) year lease
agreement with Kansas State Bank to lease three 2024 Chevy Tahoes, and three 2024 Chevy 1500s from John
Elway Chevrolet and have those six vehicles up-fitted with emergency equipment by MHQ of New Mexico.

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be:
I move that City Council authorize City Manager Sanders to negotiate and sign a five (5) year lease agreement
with Kansas State Bank to lease three 2024 Chevy Tahoes, and three 2024 Chevy 1500s from John Elway
Chevrolet and have those six vehicles up-fitted with emergency equipment by MHQ of New Mexico, for a total
cost of $409,100. 

AttachmentsAttachments
2024 Police Vehicle Lease















































































CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Rick SmithRick Smith  

Director of General Services 
110 West Progress Circle 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
rsmith@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

Vickie Haddix, General Services Secretary

Date:Date:
 

March 5 2024
 

RE:RE:
 

Authorization for lease of two greens mowers for the Golf Course.Authorization for lease of two greens mowers for the Golf Course.
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
Specifications were drawn up, an RFP was sent, and bid proposals were received on January 10, 2024 for two
greens mowers to be used at the Golf Course. Two proposals were received. The following is an overview of the
bids received. Please refer to the attached bid tabulation for specifics.

            BIDDER                      MAKE             PURCHASE PRICE      ANNUAL LEASE AMOUNT 

1.  Potestio Brothers         John Deere       $56,178.00 each          $13,289.49 each     ($26,578.98 for 2 units)

      2.  Simpson Norton           Toro                  $58,656.30 each          N/A - No lease option was proposed

Potestio Brothers can deliver both proposals in 12-18 months.  If the mowers are leased, the lease would not start
until 2025 when the units actually arrive at the Golf Course.  The lease term is for 60 months.

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The 2024 Equipment Fund Budget provides $27,000 for the acquisition of two (2) greens mowers for use at the
Golf Course. These units will replace the oldest greens mowers.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
The lease amount is included in the Equipment Fund budget.

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that City Council authorize City Manager Sanders to negotiate and sign a five (5) year lease
agreement with John Deere Financial for two (2) John Deere greens mowers from Potestio Brothers at the annual
lease amount of $26,578.98, and a total lease amount of $132,895.90.

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be:
I move that City Council approve accept the bid for two (2) John Deere greens mowers received from Potestio
Brothers at the annual lease amount of $26,578.98, and authorize City Manager Sanders to negotiate and sign a
five (5) year lease agreement with John Deere Financial.

AttachmentsAttachments
Greens mower Bid tab



2024 GREENSMOWERS BID TAB
BID ITEM:  LEASE 2 SELFPROPELLED GREENSOWERS

Simpson Norton Potestio Brothers
ENGINE

Dual element air cleaner, Air Cooled, YES Dual liquid
Full pressure lubrication with oil filter YES YES
Oil capacity: 3.9 QTS 2.3 QTS
Engine governed. YES 2880 HIGH IDLE YES MECHANICAL
RADIATOR Side mounted, remote mounted expansion tank, YES 55 Cu In YES

19X10.5X8 4 PLY
CONTROLS & GAUGES
Joystick cutting controls with lower, lift, on/off, and timing. YES YES
Control lever with neutral, mow, and transport. YES YES PUSH SWITCH

Choke lever. Hand Throttle speed control. 
YES

Foot operated traction drive and brake.
YES

Hour meter, warning light cluster. YES YES
On board LCD gauges information screen and diagnostics. YES YES
ELECTRICAL: 12-volt maintenance free battery, 300 CCA. YES YES
50-amp alternator. 60 AMP 55 AMP.
Ignition switch and key, seat switch. YES YES
Lighting harness kit and lights. YES LED YES LED
FUEL CAPACITY 6 GAL YES 5.3 GAL

YES YES
Foot pedal forward and reverse, variable speed. YES YES

Diesel powered 24 H.P., four-cycle. Kubota 3-cylinder, governed, 
Tiered 4i Engine,  Mfg: 
HP Diesel powered 24 H.P., four-cycle. Kubota 3-cylinder, governed, 
Tiered 4i Engine,  Mfg: 
HP 

Kubota
24.8 hpKubota
24.8 hp

Yanmar
19 hpYanmar
19 hp

TIRES:  Three wheeled unit with 19 x 10.5-8, 4 ply pneumatic 
tubeless tires, smooth thread. TIRES:  Three wheeled unit with 19 x 
10.5-8, 4 ply pneumatic 
tubeless tires, smooth thread. 

19X10.5X8 4 PLY
20X10.00X10 PLY 
BALLOON ROUNDED 
EDGES19X10.5X8 4 PLY
20X10.00X10 PLY 
BALLOON ROUNDED EDGES

NO/
DIESEL ENGNO/
DIESEL ENG
YES INTERGRADE 
IN PEDALSYES INTERGRADE 
IN PEDALS

TRACTION DRIVE 3- wheel chassis. Two-wheel traction drive. 
Hydrostatic piston pump, closed loop System



2024 GREENSMOWERS BID TAB
BID ITEM:  LEASE 2 SELFPROPELLED GREENSOWERS

Simpson Norton Potestio Brothers
Two hydraulic drive motors. YES YES
SPEED Forward – 3 MPH to 8 MPH YES 0-10 0-11
Reverse – 1.9 MPH. 0-4
HYDRAULIC 5.5-gallon tank. YES 6 GALLON 5.8



2024 GREENSMOWERS BID TAB
BID ITEM:  LEASE 2 SELFPROPELLED GREENSOWERS

Simpson Norton Potestio Brothers
5-micron hydraulic filter YES 8  MICRON
Hydraulic leak detection system. YES YES
Hydraulic power steering. YES YES HYD
BRAKES: 6” drum type mechanical brakes, with parking brake. YES 6" YES
SEAT Contour seat with fore/aft adjustment YES YES
foam filled with vinyl cover include arm rest W/ ARM REST YES
LIGHTS Installed work light kit YES LED LIGHTS YES
BASKETS  Yes, 3 each unit YES  YES
REELS: 3 ea 14 blade reel units per unit. Free floating. YES YES
Free Floating cutting unit. YES YES FREE FLOATING
Dual point adjustment: YES YES DUAL
59” width of cut. YES 62" WIDTH
Hydraulic cutting unit drive. YES YES HYD
2 sets of 3 each rear roller scrapper.  SET OF 3 INC. YES 2 SETS OF 3
Reel speed adjustable. YES YES
BEDKNIFE Replaceable single edge YES YES 
ROLLER: 14 blade reels with aluminum narrow Wiehle roller kit. YES YES STEEL ROLLER

WARRANTY Information 2 YR  STANDARD

Inclued YES
MAKE TORO JOHN DEERE

MODEL 2750
BID PRICE FOB CORTEZ EACH $58,656.30 $56,178.00
TOTAL BID PRICE $117,312.60 $12,356.00
LEASE OPTION PER YEAR NO $13,119.12
LEASE OPTION TOTAL NO 2.6238.24
DELIVERY 12-18 MO. SPRING 2025
COMPANY Simpson Norton Potestio Brothers
CONTACT Kenny Blake Joe Conner
EMAIL
PHONE 1.505.269.4938 1.303.841.2299

FAX 1.303.841.7039

TWO YR 1,5000 
Limited 

MANUALS: 2-Sets of Service and Operational manuals 
shall be included with each unit. 

04520 GREENSMASTER
TRIFLEX 3400

kenny.blake@simpsonnorton.com joec@pbequip.com

623.9320.6522 
Corporate Ofc

mailto:kenny.blake@simpsonnorton.com
mailto:joec@pbequip.com


CITY OF CORTEZ
123 ROGER SMITH AVENUE
CORTEZ, CO 81321

 
Rachael MarchbanksRachael Marchbanks 

Community/Economic Development Director 
123 Roger Smith Ave. 

Cortez, CO. 81321 
rmarchbanks@cortezco.gov

Memorandum
To:To:
 

CORTEZ CITY COUNCIL
 

From:From:
 

RACHAEL MARCHBANKS, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY/ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Date:Date:
 

3/12/24
 

RE:RE:
 

South Broadway Area Wide Plan -- Project Working Group Council LiaisonSouth Broadway Area Wide Plan -- Project Working Group Council Liaison
  
 

DISCUSSIONDISCUSSION
The Community and Economic Development team is forming a Project Working Group for the South Broadway
Area-Wide Plan (AWP). We are seeking a Council liaison who would be able to attend the meetings and
provide critical input for the project's vision, priorities, and strategies.

We anticipate the time commitment to be approximately 8-10 hours over a 6-month time period. The group will
meet in the evening, likely four to six times between March and August of this year. This meeting will be in-
person and will be held at City Hall.

· Meeting 1: Project Overview and Stakeholder Listening Session (March)
· Meeting 2: Community Survey Results, Project Vision and Priorities (May)
· Meeting 3: Planning Initiatives (June)
· Meeting 4: Catalyst Sites (July)
· Additional meetings TBD
 

BACKGROUNDBACKGROUND
The South Broadway AWP study is being conducted as part of the Colorado Department of Public Health and
Environment (CDPHE) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Statewide Brownfields Assessment Grant
(SWAG). The grant provides funding for local communities to fund environmental site assessments and cleanup,
as well as site reuse and area wide planning activities that support brownfield reuse (and lead to potential cleanup
and redevelopment). The City of Cortez is one of four communities named in the SWAG and is eligible to use a
portion of the EPA Brownfield Grant funds for area-wide planning that would address brownfield conditions.
The EPA defines brownfields as "a property, the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may be
complicated by the presence or potential presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or contaminant."

Potential outcomes of this AWP study would include recommendations relating to zoning/land use refinements,
capital projects, and marketing/branding activities. Notable AWP objectives will be to: (a) identify the
community's desired land use pattern/urban form, (b) identify the locally preferred street network pattern, (c)
define properties with near-term redevelopment potential, (d) define strategies to improve non-motorized travel,
and (e) define strategies to entice investment and redevelopment activities in the Focus Area.

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT
None.

RECOMMENDATIONRECOMMENDATION



Staff recommends that Council nominate and appoint a Council member to serve as a liaison to the AWP
working group.

MOTIONMOTION
If agreed upon by the City Council, a possible motion would be:
I move that City Council appoint [insert Council Member's name here] to serve as the Cortez City Council
Liaison to the Project Working Group for the South Broadway Area-Wide Plan.

AttachmentsAttachments
CDPHE Memo



 

  
 

 

Memo 

To: 
 
 
cc: 

Drew Sanders, Rachel Marchbanks, 
Helen West, Cortez 
 
 
Kathleen Knox, CDPHE 
Dave Laney and Rhonda Bell, Stantec 

From: Ryan Givens, Planner/Urban 
Designer 
Ryan.Givens@stantec.com 

 
Project/File: 

 
CDPHE - Cortez Planning 

 
Date: 

 
December 11, 2023 

 

Reference: CDPHE – South Broadway Area-Wide Planning Work Plan  

Stantec prepared this work plan outline for an area-wide planning (AWP) study for a ~145-acre Focus Area 
along South Broadway (HWY 491) in Cortez, Colorado (See Figure 1.0.1 for an aerial depiction of the 
proposed Focus Area Boundaries). Stantec and City Staff met virtually on November 7, 2023 to discuss the 
area needs, opportunities for revitalization, and a potential work plan.  City Staff can use this information to 
select their preferred work plan components. Based on the City’s feedback, Stantec will create a final 
project scope with more detailed task descriptions and budget allocations.  

The AWP study would be conducted as part of the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment 
(CDPHE) U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Statewide Brownfields Assessment Grant (SWAG) No. 
4B95821202. The grant provides funding for local communities to fund environmental site assessments 
cleanup planning, site redevelopment planning, and area wide planning activities that support brownfield 
reuse..  The City of Cortez is one of four communities named in the SWAG and is eligible to use a portion of 
the EPA Brownfield Grant funds for area-wide planning that would address brownfield conditions. The EPA 
defines brownfields as “a property, the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may be complicated by 
the presence or potential presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or contaminant.” Former industrial 
and commercial sites, properties with potential petroleum contamination and hazardous substances, and 
abandoned, vacant and underutilized properties fall within this definition of brownfields.  

1.0 - Project Overview 
Area-Wide Planning – The City of Cortez would like Stantec to conduct an area-wide planning (AWP) study 
for the South Broadway corridor (and portions of the adjacent neighborhoods) to define a vision and action 
plan for the area. The overarching goal is to define a series of strategies that would improve quality of life, 
support property reuse/redevelopment, and put underutilized sites/brownfields back into productive use. 
Stantec recommends a holistic approach to the AWP study that would include: (a) project 
management/team coordination, (b) a community engagement plan, (c) an existing conditions analysis, (d) 
refinements/updates to the property inventory (to respond to the AWP work plan), (e) conceptual plans 
(showing redevelopment options/scenarios), (f) a series of revitalization strategies, and (g) a final AWP 
report that summarizes the findings and recommendations (to improve area conditions).  

Work Plan Components - Potential outcomes of this AWP study would include recommendations relating 
to zoning/land use refinements, capital projects, and marketing/branding activities. Notable AWP 
objectives will be to: (a) identify the community’s desired land use pattern/urban form, (b) identify the 
locally preferred street network pattern, (c) define properties with near-term redevelopment potential, (d) 



December 11, 2023 
Drew Sanders, Rachel Marchbanks, Helen West 
Page 2 of 5  

Reference: CDPHE – Cortez – South Broadway Area-Wide Planning 

  
 

 

define strategies to improve nonmotorized travel, and (e) define strategies to encourage investment and 
redevelopment activities in the Focus Area.  

Focus Area – The recommended AWP Focus Area (or project boundaries) include the properties that front 
South Broadway (HWY 491) between 3rd Avenue and just north of Chapman Road (an unimproved right-of-
way that intersects with the highway). The Focus Areas would also extend into portions of the 
neighborhoods on either side of the highway.  Figure 1.0.1 depicts the recommended Focus Area 
boundaries.  

Area Context - The South Broadway corridor serves as a major thoroughfare into the City; the corridor 
extends southeast into unincorporated Montezuma County, the southern industrial areas, and the areas 
around Cortez Municipal Airport.  Over the decades, South Broadway has developed with highway 
commercial land uses including fueling stations, accommodations, and small retail stores.  The corridor is 
characterized as an automobile-oriented development pattern, meaning many of the developed properties 
have surface parking lots and buildings are set back from the public sidewalks.  The corridor has several 
underutilized and/or underperforming properties – many sites possess additional urban infill potential on 
vacant portions of the land, and other sites are not fully occupied with tenants.  Additionally, there are 
several parcels that remain undeveloped.  Residential neighborhoods line the corridor and are located 
behind commercial properties that front directly on South Broadway; these neighborhoods serve as 
potential customers for current and future businesses.  Additionally, Mesa Park and the Ridge Line & Foot 
Trail are significant community amenities located on the east side of the proposed AWP Focus Area. The 
corridor is experiencing recent developer interest and a few properties are upgoing adaptive reuse activities 
(e.g., the legacy American Holiday Mesa Verde Inn is being redeveloped into housing).  

Mobility Conditions - The current mobility network is focused primarily on automobile traffic; the Focus 
Area lacks a broad array of pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure to allow individuals to move amongst area 
land uses (without the need for a motorized vehicle).  South Broadway has continuous sidewalks in the 
segments north of 7th Street; the southern segments have only intermittent sidewalk coverage.  Pedestrian 
crosswalks are provided at major street intersections, whereas most are not signalized creating a 
potentially dangerous (and uncomfortable) environment for pedestrians.  Additionally, many of the side 
streets that intersect the South Broadway corridor are spaced 775-900 feet apart which exacerbates the 
limited walkability in the area.   

Property Inventory – In October 2023, Stantec completed a property inventory for the parcels that mostly 
front on South Broadway (between 4th Street and McElmo Street) with the objectives of identifying 
vacant/underutilized parcels, and potential brownfield sites.  The inventory findings should be incorporated 
into the AWP study. Notably, the inventory should be updated to include all the parcels included in the AWP 
Focus Area boundaries (for analytical purposes).  

Land Use Code Update – The City of Cortez is presently working on amendments to its land use code 
including potential refinements to its zoning map and development regulations. Through an AWP process 
for the South Broadway corridor, there is opportunity to examine how the new code updates would affect 
(or even support) future projects. There is also opportunity to identify potential regulatory barriers that may 
exist between a new vision for the corridor and the City’s development standards – in those situations, 
Stantec can recommend potential regulatory solutions.  



December 11, 2023 
Drew Sanders, Rachel Marchbanks, Helen West 
Page 3 of 5  

Reference: CDPHE – Cortez – South Broadway Area-Wide Planning 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 
 
  

Figure 1.0.1 – Recommended AWP Focus Area (boundary depicted as a yellow line)  
Source: Montezuma County GIS 
 

Cortez 
Middle 
School 

Mesa Park 



December 11, 2023 
Drew Sanders, Rachel Marchbanks, Helen West 
Page 4 of 5  

Reference: CDPHE – Cortez – South Broadway Area-Wide Planning 

  
 

 

2.0 – Draft AWP Work Plan  
The following table lists the recommended tasks that would be included in an AWP project for a South 
Broadway AWP study.  The City may use this table to select which tasks it would like to include in the scope 
of work for the project.  After the City selects its preferred tasks, Stantec will prepare a more detailed work 
plan for project implementation. 
 

Table 2.0.a – Cortez – South Broadway Area-Wide Planning Work Plan  
Task Description 
Task 1.0: Project 
Management and 
Coordination 
 
 

• Project management and reporting (i.e., EPA Grant) 
• Team coordination 
• City/Stantec coordination meetings (~2 virtual meetings) 

Task 2.0: Community 
Engagement  
 
 

• Conduct a City Staff (and governmental partners) Listening Session. 
• Engagement with a Project Working Group (3 virtual meetings).** 
• Prepare and launch a Community Survey (i.e., on-line).** 
 
**Assumes the City of Cortez will lead outreach/promotional activities, 
form the Working Group membership, and provide event staffing. 
 
*** this does not include an in-person community workshop 

Task 3.0: Existing Conditions 
Analysis 
 
 

• Document area conditions (i.e., land use patterns, area character, 
notable uses/properties) – including one trip to the Focus Area.  

• Summarize current (or proposed) zoning and land use 
standards/policies. 

• Refine (as necessary) the Property Inventory. 
• Summarize the area’s roadway and mobility conditions.  
• Review and evaluate the area’s water and sewer infrastructure 

(planning-level analysis focusing on readily available maps/plans 
and staff interviews – this does not include a detailed system review 
and/or modeling). 

Task 4.0: Conceptual 
Planning 
 
 

• Prepare an Urban Framework Plan (UFP) to graphically illustrate 
recommended land use designations, opportunity sites, and capital 
projects.  

• Prepare a separate projects list that corresponds to those depicted 
on the UFP.  

• Prepare a conceptual, color-rendered redevelopment scenario 
exhibit for the Focus Area (to graphically convey how the area may 
redevelop in the future).  

• Prepared potential street cross section designs for one roadway 
segment 

Task 5.0: Revitalization 
Strategies 
 
 

• Prepare narratives and exhibits for mobility-related strategies.  
• Prepare narratives and exhibits for land use/zoning-related 

strategies. 
• Prepare narratives and exhibits for other revitalization strategies (to 

be determined though the engagement activities).  



December 11, 2023 
Drew Sanders, Rachel Marchbanks, Helen West 
Page 5 of 5  

Reference: CDPHE – Cortez – South Broadway Area-Wide Planning 

  
 

 

Table 2.0.a – Cortez – South Broadway Area-Wide Planning Work Plan  
Task Description 
Task 6.0: Area-Wide 
Planning Document 
 
 

• Provide a draft outline for City approval. 
• Develop a project brand (i.e., fonts, colors, etc.) 
• Author narratives explaining the planning process, existing 

conditions findings, engagement responses/community priorities, 
the UFP, revitalization strategies, and action plan.  

• Prepare supportive maps and exhibits.  
• Prepare a document layout in Adobe InDesign.  
• Provide up to two (2) rounds of revisions based on City staff 

comments.  
• Provide a final AWP document in PDF format.  

  
 
 
3.0 – AWP Schedule 
It is anticipated that up to five virtual meetings will be conducted to prepare the South Broadway AWP. 
These include: 

• Meeting 1. Attendees: City Staff & Stantec. This meeting will be designed to discuss comments on 
the draft AWP Work Plan.  

• Meeting 2: Attendees: City Staff, Working Group Members, Stantec. This will be a listening session 
where the purpose and goals of the AWP are explained and Working Group members provide ideas 
and comments. 

• Meeting 3: Attendees: City Staff, Working Group Members, Stantec. During this meeting, Stantec 
will summarize notes from meeting No. 2 and seek clarification if/when necessary. 

• Meeting 4.  Attendees: City Staff, Working Group Members, Stantec. This meeting will include a 
summary of work in progress to solicit feedback. It will include a discussion and review of existing 
conditions, the UFP and revitalization strategies. A draft of the AWP may be provided before the 
meeting. 

• Meeting 5.  Attendees: City Staff & Stantec. A draft final AWP will presented at this meeting. A copy 
of the document provided before this meeting for review by City Staff. Comments received during 
Meeting 4 will be incorporated into the AWP before the meeting.   

It is expected that these meetings will be initiated in 2024 and that the process for AWP development will 
require approximately six months to complete. 


	Agenda
	2.a. Approval of the Workshop and Agenda Minutes for February 13, 2024
	       ATT_Workshop Minutes for February 13, 2024
	       ATT_Agenda Minutes for February 13, 2024
	       ATT_Special Meeting for March 1, 2024
	2.b. Expenditure List
	       ATT_Expenditure List
	030824 Expenditure List
	030124 Expenditure List.pdf
	030124 Expenditure List


	2.c. SEP Chamber of Commerce
	       ATT_SEP- Chamber of Commerce
	2.d. Change in Corporation- Mi Mexico
	       ATT_Change in Corporation Structure- Mi Mexico
	2.e. Transfer of ownership- Stonefish
	       ATT_Transfer of Ownership- Stonefish
	2.f. Durango Organics Renewal
	       ATT_Renewal Memo for Durango Organics
	4.a. Council Statement
	5.a. Request for Postponement of Public Hearing
	7.a. Discount for Second Refuse Polycart Users
	       ATT_2nd Polycart Half Off Flyer
	7.b. Vehicle Lease
	       ATT_2024 Police Vehicle Lease
	7.c. Authorization for lease of two greens mowers for the Golf Course
	       ATT_Greens mower Bid tab
	7.d. Request for Appointment of Council Liaison for S. Broadway AWP Working Group
	       ATT_CDPHE Memo
	1.0 - Project Overview
	2.0 – Draft AWP Work Plan
	3.0 – AWP Schedule


